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Location

23A LYTTLETON STREET and FREDERICK STREET CASTLEMAINE, MOUNT ALEXANDER SHIRE

Municipality

MOUNT ALEXANDER SHIRE

Level of significance

-

Victorian Heritage Register (VHR) Number

H0683

Heritage Overlay Numbers

HO635

Heritage Listing

Vic. War Heritage Inventory

Statement of Significance

Last updated on - June 28, 1999

What is significant?
The Castlemaine Orderly Room was constructed in Lyttleton Street in 1888-9 after a decision was made to
demolish the existing orderly room. In 1863 a site within the Public Purposes Reserve was gazetted for the use of
the Castlemaine Rifle Corps, and in 1872 a brick orderly room was built. There was much opposition sixteen
years later when it was decided to replace this substantial building with a larger, timber orderly hall, designed by
the Public Works Department architect, S. E. Bindley, the architect in charge of the north-western district.

Castlemaine was first surveyed in 1852, after gold had been discovered in the region the year before. It grew
rapidly as an administrative and service centre for the rich goldfields and many large buildings had been built in
the town before it lost its supremacy in the 1870s as the region?s leading town. Deep lead mining resulted in
enormous growth and prosperity in nearby Bendigo and Ballarat, however a solid economic and social base had
been established in Castlemaine and this ensured its continuation as a sizable town, with a number of buildings
replaced by more substantial edifices in the 1880s and 1890s.

The first rifle corps was formed in Victoria as a result of the Volunteer Corps Act of 1854 and the first Castlemaine
Rifle Corps was formed in 1860. By 1870 the volunteer movement was an entrenched institution in Victoria,
however the popularity of the movement waned from this time and by 1880 the system was considered
unsatisfactory. This resulted in the disbandment of the volunteers in 1884 and the new militia system adopted
required more extensive and complex facilities. The government took over the ownership and management of
existing orderly rooms at this time and consequently became responsible for their construction. As a result, an
extensive programme of new building, additions, alterations and maintenance of buildings began in 1884-5. In the
next six years, fifteen orderly rooms were completed to designs by the Public Works Department, including the
Castlemaine Orderly Room. Although re-modelling of the existing brick building was initially considered, a
decision was made to demolish it and construct a new timber building.



The Castlemaine Orderly Room contained a large drill hall with auxiliary offices, storerooms and library along the
east side. These functions are expressed externally in the massing of the building, with a large, double height
section and an adjoining single storey section, and the use of corresponding large and small gables. The
resulting character is picturesque and has been described as Elizabethan Domestic in style. Overhanging gable
ends, containing collar ties and finials, are supported on timber brackets. The large gable ends of the main hall
section contain timber infill panels with cut out lancet-shaped forms between timber posts, producing a half-
timbered effect. Those of the smaller gables contain scroll-like carved panels. Pedimented window surrounds are
notched at the sides, and sills are supported on brackets. Internally, the main hall contains exposed timber
trusses and the floor was originally asphalted.

A skillion section was added to the western side of the building in 1915 to provide more office and storage space,
and a further addition was made to this in 1939. No other major alterations have occurred since its completion.

The orderly room was used by the army until 1969 when defence functions were transferred to Bendigo. The City
of Castlemaine leased the building from this date and it was used by a number of organisations until its
conversion to a swimming pool in 1990.

How is it significant?
The Castlemaine Orderly Room is of historical and architectural significance to the State of Victoria.

Why is it significant?
The Castlemaine Orderly Room is of historical significance due to its association with the colonial militia in
country Victoria. It is illustrative of the intense period of building which occurred after the re-organisation of the
defence forces in 1884.

It is of historical significance within the nineteenth century streetscape of Lyttleton Street, the civic administration
centre of what was once one of the larger gold towns. Together with the Post Office (1875-6), Town Hall (1898),
School of Mines and Industry (1889-90) and the Court House (1877-8), the Orderly Room forms an intact and
coherent streetscape, the latter attained by a consistency of scale and setback. The prominent siting of the
orderly room reflects the importance of militarism in the nineteenth century.

The Castlemaine Orderly Room is of architectural significance as an intact and rare example of a large
nineteenth century timber building. It is one of a number of timber orderly rooms designed by the Public Works
Department architect, S. E. Bindley, which generally adopted similar forms and detailing. It is illustrative of the
picturesque style which is evident in all of Bindley?s orderly room designs, however the detail of the decorative
gable ends is unique. It is one of a small number of these orderly rooms that remain intact.
[Online Data Upgrade Project 2004]

Construction dates 1888, 

Architect/Designer Bindley, Samuel Ebden, 

Heritage Act Categories Registered place, 

Other Names CASTLEMAINE DRILL HALL,   CASTLEMAINE ORDERLY ROOM,  
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Property Number

Physical Description 1

Date Started 1889; Date Finished ; Storeys 2; Desc HALL; Walls TIMBER; Roof CORRUGATED IRON; Public
Works Department;



Usage/Former Usage

1889 ; HALL ;

Physical Description 2

The Castlemaine Orderly Room contained a large drill hall with auxiliary offices, storerooms and library along the
east side. These functions are expressed externally in the massing of the building, with a large, double height
section and an adjoining single storey section, and the use of corresponding large and small gables. The
resulting character is picturesque and has been described as Elizabethan Domestic in style. Overhanging gable
ends, containing collar ties and finials, are supported on timber brackets. The large gable ends of the main hall
section contain timber infill panels with cut out lancet-shaped forms between timber posts, producing a half-
timbered effect. Those of the smaller gables contain scroll-like carved panels. Pedimented window surrounds are
notched at the sides, and sills are supported on brackets. Internally, the main hall contains exposed timber
trusses and the floor was originally asphalted.

A skillion section was added to the western side of the building in 1915 to provide more office and storage space,
and a further addition was made to this in 1939. No other major alterations have occurred since its completion.

The orderly room was used by the army until 1969 when defence functions were transferred to Bendigo. The City
of Castlemaine leased the building from this date and it was used by a number of organisations until its
conversion to a swimming pool in 1990.

Physical Conditions

State of the Historic Environment survey report- Fair condition see events

Veterans Description for Public

The Castlemaine Orderly Room was constructed in Lyttleton Street between 1888-9 after a decision was made to
demolish the existing orderly room. In 1863, a site within the Public Purposes Reserve was gazetted for the use
of the Castlemaine Rifle Corps and in 1872 a brick orderly room was built. The Castlemaine drill hall was built by
D. J. Thomson jnr to drawings prepared by S. E. Bindley acting under chief architect H. R. Bastow of the Victorian
Public Works Department. The design wasto provide expanded accommodation for the Castlemaine company of
the Victorian volunteer rifle corps, formed in 1862.

The first rifle corps was formed in Victoria as a result of the Volunteer Corps Act of 1854 and the first Castlemaine
Rifle Corps was formed in 1860. By 1870 the volunteer movement was an entrenched institution in Victoria,
however the popularity of the movement waned from this time and by 1880 the system was considered
unsatisfactory. This resulted in the disbandment of the volunteers in 1884 and the new militia system adopted
required more extensive and complex facilities. The government took over the ownership and management of
existing orderly rooms at this time and consequently became responsible for their construction. As a result, an
extensive programme of new building, additions, alterations and maintenance of buildings began in 1884-5. In the
next six years, fifteen orderly rooms were completed to designs by the Public Works Department, including the
Castlemaine Orderly Room. Although re-modelling of the existing brick building was initially considered, a
decision was made to demolish it and construct a new timber building.

The Castlemaine Orderly Room contained a large drill hall with auxiliary offices, storerooms and library along the
east side. These functions are expressed externally in the massing of the building, with a large, double height
section and an adjoining single storey section, and the use of corresponding large and small gables. The
resulting character is picturesque and has been described as Elizabethan Domestic in style. Overhanging gable
ends, containing collar ties and finials, are supported on timber brackets. The large gable ends of the main hall
section contain timber infill panels with cut out lancet-shaped forms between timber posts, producing a half-
timbered effect. Those of the smaller gables contain scroll-like carved panels. Pedimented window surrounds are
notched at the sides, and sills are supported on brackets. Internally, the main hall contains exposed timber
trusses and the floor was originally asphalted.



Extent of Registration

The whole of the land and all the buildings entered in Certificate of Title Vol. 9512 Folio 200 to the extent marked
on the plan held by the Minister for Planning and Environment.

This place/object may be included in the Victorian Heritage Register pursuant to the Heritage Act 2017. Check
the Victorian Heritage Database, selecting 'Heritage Victoria' as the place source.

For further details about Heritage Overlay places, contact the relevant local council or go to Planning Schemes
Online http://planningschemes.dpcd.vic.gov.au/
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